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49. A consumer who clicked on any of the blue hyperlinks in this ad was directed to 

the Ryadd website promoting resale tickets in TicketNetwork's inventory. This website follows 

a slightly modified format that Ryadd began using on some of its microsites some time in 2012. 

The landing page contains similar venue-mimicking elements as shown above, but is headlined 

with a more generic title as follows: 

Browse events at XL Center XL Center Info 

EvM mlonntvcn Da!t City· 
Country: Un'ted Cf America 

CQnQ!Il;!i'!l! Whale VS. Sunday VtewTickets State: Conneticut 
Providence Bruins HartfQrd Civic Cen1 ... Apr7, 2013 Zip: 06103 

HartfQrd, CT 3:00 PM 

Ringnng l!llrnum & Formem Thursday VtewToclcets Ticket l!llilev Cjrcus !;;ivic qn1 .. , May9, 2013 
f:la[l!ord. CT 7:00 PM Sfoo-;tping: Shipping May Be Delayed But 

Ringling And Barnum & Friday VteWTickets Amvt Sa fare ThR Event Gua111r.teed. 

!;!alley Circus Hartford Civic Cent ... May 10, 2013 Pt:c•: Ticket Prices Can Be Btlovt Or 
Above Face VaNe. Hartford, CT 10:30 AM 
In\'tntcr;.:: We Art A Sec::ondary Markat 

Ringling !;l[QS, FQrmem Friday V.ewToclcets 
T"'-:ket Uh11'l.ing The !Illest 

Bailey Circus I:!Aa!Q!l! !;ivic Cent ... May 10, 2013 Extensive Nttwor'.c Of B:.i1 trs And Se trs 
Of Event Inver tory Fe r Buyers And 

l:laa!ord. !;T 7:00 PM s. ...... 
Ringling !;!ros, {!nd Barnum & l!L Formem Saturday I VteWTickets j Guarantu: All Tid:.ets Are GuarantHd 

To Bt lt;ltimatt And OffKitl. Ci r,us H§[l!ord Civic cent... May 11, 2013 
HartfQrd CT 11:00AM 

Ringling !;!ros. And !jarnum & Eormer1y Saturday VtewTickets About XL Center 
Bailey C!r,us f:lartlord Civic Cent ... May 11, 2013 

Ha[l!ord, CT 3:00PM The XL Cente r, formerly The H.rtfod 
c c: Centu, is muffi-use arena, 

Ringfing l!M l!llmum lit !;;1n!1r FQrmem Saturday VteWTickets located Jus t off Interst.te 95 in Hartfod, !;!ailey Cjrcys Hoa!Qrd Civic cent ... May 11, 2013 Conntticut. Th XL Center is a !:lit 
Ha[l!ord. 0 7:00 PM venut ,ls 1 sports and convention 

Rinaling !jros And l!llrnum & Sunday V.ewTickets 
complex in Hilctfcrd, 
USA, o-1ntd by the C1ty c f Hlf"tfcrd a nd 

Clr,us Haa!Q!l! Civic Cent... May 12, 2013 operated by Ent ert.llnf'l'lt:nt 
CT 1:00PM Group under "1 the 

CCnntdC\.It COA. 
Ringling llomum Formem Sunday VtewToclcets The a :-arta :S ranked tftt 26th largut: 

Cjr,us f:lartrord Civic Cent.,. May 12, 2013 amen; bcsl.:e::,all aren..• · 
lloa!Qfll, CT 5:00PM en; located to' s h•npir.g 

m• C""k Center f.(a't \...-" c:l, WI .J 
Justin Weber FQrmem Thursday ! VtewToclcets I c!emo(ish.d in 20C-4, it to'as orJ;in1 

f:laa!Q[d Civic Cent. .. Jul18, 2013 bu..! 1n ! 975 and consists h-Jo 
Hortford, CT 7:00PM faa .tiu: th• Namor1a l 

Cc. ttl!:n and the Center. 
2Qn XL Center Formem Wednesday v- Tickets 

Men's Civic Cent... Aug 14, 2013 The J.,_.C.nttrHartforc.::o:n 1! a J:rv't- att 
• Day 1 CT 1:00 PM he le comp•ny Wt speca ozu i., t."'e n le 

of txk•ts in the SKcnd.uy marictt. We 
l!L FQrmem Wednesday I VteW Tickets I any s:..p,l.ar 

ChampiQnshlos: Sr. Men's I:!Oa!Q[d CiVic Cent .. Aug 14, 2013 orb<: cf'=a. To ;Jurchase tkktts to ar-y 
- Day 1 (;T 6:30PM XL Ctnttr 1n r attford evtnts 11mp;, u ti 

O;ltntol"J ttnyt;f":'te or c\ clt :n the 
!.!S !Zymnastics Thursday I VJeWTickets I event you .,.,ish tc iJttt nc!. 

WQmen's !;!vic Cent... Aug 15, 2013 
Competition • Dav 1 Ha[l!ord, CT 1:00PM 

50. The most physically prominent feature on the landing page is the title in 

large print- "Hartford Tickets" - accompanied by a visual image of the actual XL Center 
17 

Case 3:14-cv-01046   Document 1   Filed 07/24/14   Page 17 of 44



in Hartford. Predecessor pages on this website used the banner "XL Center" instead. In 

this example, the sections on the right side of the page labeled "XL Center Info" and 

"About XL Center" include facts about that particular venue: 

The XL Center, formerly The Hartfod (sic) Civic Center, is a multi-use 
arena, located just offlnterstate 95 in Hartfod (sic), Connecticut. The XL 
Center is a scalable venue, is a sports and convention complex located in 
Hartford, Connecticut, USA, owned by the City of Hartford and operated 
by Anschutz Entertainment Group under contract with the Connecticut 
Development Authority CDA. The arena is ranked the 28th largest among 
college basketball arenas. Originally located adjacent to a shopping mall 
Civic Center Mall, which was demolished in 2004, it was originally built 
in 1975 and consists oftwo facilities: the Veterans Memorial Coliseum 
and the Exhibition Center. 

51. This landing page includes the same fine print disclaimer that appears in the 

Radio City Music Hall landing page: "We are an independently owned and operated site 

specializing in the secondary market. We are not affiliated with any primary website, venue, or 

box office." Underneath the title, in much smaller type, there also is a passage stating: "Powered 

by Official Online tickets. No Affiliation with Official Site." 

52. A consumer who clicked on a "View Tickets" button was directed to a ticket 

listing page, for example: 

18 
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Connectkut Whale YS. ~ Bnllns, XL Center - (Fonnelly Hartford Clvk: Center) 

~, ".::: ~w · 'i a:a. e*r ":t :':.J. •'"=.a•.t.~ -=l~ r:- ~=-,.~=- -=~t n"• : '- :--:-""":c .. « !.r~o. • • "' co <:ar !t-< 

1! c.:'. ' ~ c~."'~f"·.:l: ::' .L .!"'vr.j! ~'-- st:~ ·:! t·r~:·"'~ ...., e. .. •- ..-, ·c~r-~s:!: · eo, •~,.: ~<-~b 

l'r.:n- aut :..~e lt. r .. c -e..., :0\. tt!"l'" ~- r--2 -:: ~ 
t... ~n ;ar~ J!. ~t<r a~"<'~! ;c!'~:-- .. ~use: ~"T 

Pnc••~: 
~)7 :c !7• 

107---·---x 

l ""U doj;p~y t&> • 

r ~>d••" 1:1 
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Like the Radio City Music Hall ticket page, this ticket page states in small print above the venue 

map: "We are a resale marketplace, not a box office or venue." 

53. A consumer who clicked on the "Buy" button of this page was directed to a 

checkout page that looks almost identical to that in the previous example, as illustrated below: 

Ticket lnfonnation 
Sllop-1 ,. )!!oo 
~...,~'!\rWAir.\-.~.;tan~ 
~ • ..,.l\;. ... 

PUI\UtoUI!H(Ill'i 
A ...,. . I. ...... 

; ~ .. .... ~c.· .. ~..., lo 

r"!<l) ;lift ~-
. ·ooct • · It 

~ . ' , 
AliJ '-"• ~'" 
~ •• ":t ..... 

. !'f!.r ":c "" ,_, 

Tickets 

Connecticut Whale vs. Providence Bruins 
s.. ' ~ :- .~ ,. . ,; "" 

.&.C... .. '7"""'-1 s"" .... - <: ~ Ca 

$toj}ts ~ ~ ' ' """ ... 
Pn~ p,., T ~f't. ~~ .. ...,.., 

T kf' Roq .. <~ 2 E) 

PI....'*N?U 
Al;'f~ . ... trt ... ::;-
~t: -:...- .J.,:.W ·- ~4~ 
rot ~~tlr':tu~~ttCIM. ~.,;.(...,!J),UJt 

\"tl! n .a tea» tt"..I'Y'~ t ne-t J ~_,., :" t :< t'I~O 

Delivery Opt1ons 

~ "!1 - Se-leetCounuy - - B 
·~~-.t!lt• .. unCM'J .... "'P"ll~O· C t' ... s ~ ~ 

_J .- . .. ·-r t ~·o 

f"1.o:-·u.e s.e:..Ct ~ ~•'Y C·lUnlr/ a d l .,-y MN"''d fer 

B1ilang lnfonnalion 

tN• 

E .- A u 

"~"':fir r 

54. If a consumer scrolled down the checkout page to the bottom third of the page, the 

"terms and policies" box would appear below the "Billing Information" section: 
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8tll1no Jn:om1atlon 

r-
~ '" 

'!<' 1 .. ..,.. ., ··Sci~Srot& ... 

- l ~ -V1S4 I:J 
c--.1 care ,.. ,, ... ""~lh [3 Yaor ·~ 
~Ott'( I ,. J'..# 

. .. 
-Gtn.,ol. OI"~T~<r.!t-&es$$'-"'"*"'~ __ ...,itrJ,...,W.th-il TICI<ETSC~lER,., !~ • ' 
t.Y.IIU!ott:o~d\iuell':'d u» P10\'tfl!bckfil ~"MS ~ sum,;r:cl circtttt trNc..\"fdlf\ tt.e a.ttull:xtcct~a. b;r.~ 
'bctttftn tM bu).otl attd TICK£ T SEUE.Et~ AU wfK i1rt' RNIL N. bcl..Cls s.o.ICS lh"Cf ... Oh SITE Dll (\"'.Jt'l ott .wed ~fl:~ 1M 
~, '-'>tl'Ata"><1JII'USM•W.ormn0111i' lho~~~~nc:;a;rseLLER btl'".-"" llc.o•IN) oo-•"' t>uw 
~VIftle ThobkM',miHWr:.t ~~E~.J;;t.S't ~IOI:'"MT!.U!Goft."19 ot'ra.I~T~t!; comWeb~ef$:.TE'" 171 the 
~·· oll:ltSITE J'US£11 , e1· ut-""!; "'''~'~ 11'4 U II!;EA r•D'rtlt, tll'ftllol!t- b)' ltoc>e I£RV.~ ""' to 1t'W 
-T{IIMSan~at~VO<t-t~-""'~ITE !;l:l(•ttllf..SI!ltf\Q"~~IIltltl(l\l.t.'Silll"f 
_,. '*'TERI.IS IIftO~mtllfC!~upcn-Qtll!ITF, 11 \IS ER""'*'-tlfRl.l$~T.o.o:><­
- .... ..,..~It USI:RS ~110 $tTf . wr USCR '"" ....,, -~ Cl SIT[ c;at~~ USIJI'$1(~ I'Citt t"''OIIIOt 

' d ... ___ ... 

55. If the consumer then scrolled down within the "terms and policies" box, 

additional information important to the consumer's purchase would appear again, for example: 

f'.bove Face Value. Tickets sold through SITE are often obtained through secondary market TICKET SELLERS and are being - ] 
esold, in many cases, above the price or "face value" listed on the tickel All ticket prices include additional service charges and 1\ 
~andling fees as defined on each order. SITE and TICKET SELLERS are not directly affiliated with any performer, sports team, or 
'-'enue; and SITE does not act as a primary sale box office, unless otherwise stated. By agreeing to these TERMS, USER agrees 
hat the purchase price for tickets on USER'S order does not reflect the original purchase price of the ticket and may be either 

, higher or lower than the original purchase price. 

Orders. Orders placed through SITE will be fulfilled by one of SITE'S network of participating TICKET SELLERS. Contact V 
, nformation for the TICKET SELLER who will fulfill USER'S order (hereinafter known as "FULFILLER") will be provided to USER 

56. The disclaimers on the web pages and the "terms and policies" section, which are 

identical to those on the Radio City Music Hall website, are insufficient to dispel the net 

impression created by Ryadd's Google advertisements and its web pages that this is the official 
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website for the XL Center in Hartford or is the official site for an entity authorized by the XL 

Center to sell tickets at face value. 

57. Defendant Ryadd generated hundreds of similarly-designed, venue-specific 

Ryadd websites and thousands of similarly-designed paid Google advertisements to sell resale 

event tickets in TicketNetwork's inventory. 

Examples of the Consumer's Experience Purchasing Tickets 
Through SBO Websites 

58. The consumer experience purchasing event tickets on a resale website maintained 

by SBO, another TicketNetwork Partner, is very similar to that of consumers purchasing event 

tickets on a Ryadd resale website. 

59. The following is an example of one search engine advertisement that SBO placed 

during the relevant period. A consumer who typed the phrase "palace theater albany" into a 

Google search engine box would see the following search results: 

'' War1h I •q•·' !\tip.;; ) 'u • '• •• r.JI ,, r,n ·-. •r l1 \" 1• 

Search 

I magee 

Maps 

VIdeos 

Fejrfax, VA 
Change location 

Show search t1>0fs 

~palace theater albany 

,. 

Palace Theater Albanv . Buv Palace Theatre Al bany TICkets 
palece.aJbanyboxoha com/ 
Save More ilt AlbanyBox011"tea.c:om. 

Welcome to the Palace lh"'tre I Albany NY 
!fltf pa lacea lbeny com' 

WeiCOI'M to lhe Pelace Theatre Albany NY .Albany New Yortc's leading entt r1ainment 
venue futuring arts sud'! as rode jeu . clnslclil comedy and much mont. 
*'flo * 10 Google reviews 

19 Cinton Ave #1 6 AI:Jany HY 12107 
(518) 465-3334 

Events & Tickets 
2:00PM PERFORMANCE Prep11e 
to slep lnlo a ~vorSd of wonder ... 

Seatino Chart 
Please c:ic:k on the s11Ung chert 
n ttions below for images from·-

Box Office 
Palace Theatre Box Oflk:e -· 
Tickets can be purchased at ••• 

More results from palacealbany.com • 

Par1<ing & Directions 
VIew larger Mtp. PARKtNG There 
art several opUons for ... 

~ 
"F'nl Name. "Lnt Name. Comp~ny 
Name Address ••• 

FAQ's 
The Palace Theatre is nol 
responsible for lost or .•. 

22 

.. Slift l'"' 

• • Events 

Fri. Mar 23 S.ndy Hockett's Rat Pack 
Me. 1 'c tid<etmaster.com, shovltimetidtets com 

Sat Mat 24 Disney Uve! Three Classic F"1 lry Tales 
' nre lnro llcketm.aster com. vlpsuts com 

Wed. Mar 28 l ord of the Dance 
~ere ll'lf:. tieketmas ter com. showtlmetlckets com 
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60. The first listed result is a paid advertisement for an SBO resale website promoting 

resale tickets in TicketNetwork's inventory. All three lines convey the impression that clicking 

on this advertisement will take consumers to the website of the actual Palace Theater in Albany: 

Palace Theater Albany- Buy Palace Theater Albany Tickets 
palace.albanyboxoffice.com 
Save More at AlbanyBoxOffice.com 

61. In the above example, SBO added the more venue-specific detail, i.e., "palace," to 

the display URL, "palace.albanyboxoffice.com/." The actual URL owned by SBO, to which 

consumers are directed, is "albanyboxoffice.com." 

62. A consumer who clicked on the blue hyper link in the ad was directed to an SBO 

website with the following landing page: 

- - • ~ -. y - ~ __.... 

AllutU 1~1~ 

lllbanvBoxOifice.com ., .. , FlED - G m t 
~OW'Efl f1 B l' rl(l'r (Q(I J(;F FJ';t_ SECURE a 5~~~c~.~~on 

HOME CONCERTS SPORTS THEATER 11!1!!111!1!11! i6m!l 

Palace Theatre Tickets 
You Are Shopping 

Palace Theatre 

Albany, N"f 12207 
EVENT DATE& TIME \oENUE 

United State~ of America 
Sanely Hacketrs Rat Pack Show Frl Mar 23, 2012 Palace Theatre Albany VoewToclaots • 8:00PM Albany. NY 

DISney LJvel Three Classic Fa1ry Sat Mar 24, 2012 Palace Theatre Albany 
Live Support 

View T.ckets • Tales 2:00PM Albany NY Speak with a real person 

Disney Uve! Three Classic Fairy Sat Mar 24. 2012 Palace Theatre Albany VIew Ttekets ~ 
seven days a week. 

Tales 5:00PM Albany. NY 
(888) 546-8561 

Lord of the Dance Wed Mar 28, 2012 Palace Theatre Albany 
View IICkets • 7:30PM Albany NY 

Our Guarantee 

One Night of Queen Sun Apr 1, 2012 Palace Theatre Albany 
V"te\VTtekets • 

8:00PM Albany, NY ~ Authentic Tickets 

Albany Symphony OrChestra Sat Apr 21,2012 Palace Theatre Albany View 11ckets ~ 
/ On-time Delivery 

7:30PM Albany, NY 
y The exact ticket• you 

The Avett Brothers Sun Apr 22, 2012 Palace Theatre Albany 
\II~Ttekets t 8:00PM Albany, NY ordered. or betl:er ones 

23 
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63. The most physically prominent features on the landing page include the title, 

AlbanyBoxOffice.com, and the list of available tickets at the Palace Theater Albany. At the top 

right is the statement: 

You Are Shopping 
Palace Theater 
Albany, NY 12207 
United States of America 

This information adds to the net impression that this site is the official website of Albany Palace 

Theater or is the official site of an entity authorized by the Palace Theater to sell tickets at face 

value. 

64. Like the Ryadd websites, the information provided in the general ticket listings is 

created by a feed from TicketNetwork' s inventory. 

65. A consumer who clicked on a "View Tickets" button was directed to a ticket 

listing page, for example: 

- . ...,....---. 
Abo• lfs f C'l'!f~ lJ! ' Sf(' P~o: 

AI!Janr11DXOffice.com OrdPr oohne or purr.hase bv ohonP loU h"<! •' (&88) 541>8561 ,, , , ' ' ' " - GcoTru•t· 
... Wftlt " ' t• o>tfof t •I I SECURED ._,, ...., (.IYCl~C'I' 

The Avett Brothers at Palace Theatre Albany s:oOPMonApr22 2012 -Aibar ,. NY 

H0¥1 many llckets do fOU want? r1 dcadc at checkout .:J 
1/.'hlfs Y"'Uf Pf'" r~, u r. ~ ..=.J · No maxunum .=.J 

s::CTroN 

ORCHLEFT 
CENTER 

ORCH LEFT 
CENTER 

ORC LC 

ORCH RIGHT 

w 

y 

w 

a 
ORCH CENTER a 

ORCHRIGHT K 

Balcony X 
T~ ... ~ ructJ•• t!'.e:ty C.a. 1:01:: 

Balcony G-X 
j),;Qts , .,., e. rtJd't ro u~ tr 04. 1~:e12 

Balcony X 
Td:m 'd.IM,.Mrj101l:.,op0 .. !1V..012 

BalCOny G-X 
T'loba \1111 ba ,.ldy b l...,.:& ~JWI&<:OI:. 

RBALCRT X 
Tdtu~ :~trttfi'/I) Jht"' "'- 5-·:~tl 

RBAI.CRT X 

BI'LC LC u 

P AVAU.Afk.E PRtcE (EACtfl 

540 

540 

2 or4 540 

2 S50 

552 

S78 

1 or 3 578 

1 or 3 578 

2 or 4 578 

2 or4 S78 

S79 

579 

2 or 4 579 

..... Q1U~ .... ;LJ ..... w. •u .. ·· ?w·· - ·~o 
..... r r r , ..... 
... .,. ~ • .. " '*"-" 

fUotM IIUf'loCc-... '-d. C..O...t Ldl 

Buy 

Buy 

Buy 

Buy J 

2nd Balcony 

~ ~0T0 ...... w •• ID .... '"K-· i i·~ ..... OH.Ii~·;rs· 

~ -· = . -~ -~ IUthrc-- "-"c.- '"""' 
1st Balcony 

Buy 

Buy 

Buy 

Buy 

Buy 

Buy 

8 11) 

Buy 

Buy ..:.J 
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66. The most physically prominent features on the page include the title, 

"AlbanyBoxOffice.com," the list of available tickets at the Palace Theater Albany, and the 

seating map for that venue. TicketNetwork creates and maintains the information provided in 

the ticket listings. The SBO website is able to access and display TicketNetwork' s inventory 

through the Ticket Network software plug-in. In fall2011, TicketNetwork modified the plug-in 

software that its Partners use to display venue maps on their sites and, thereafter, the SBO sites 

have included the following disclaimer in small print: "We are a resale marketplace, not a box 

office or venue." 

67. Similar to the ticket prices on the Ryadd websites, SBO' s list price for the tickets 

is based on the price set by the actual reseller plus mark-up by SBO and TicketNetwork. In 

many instances, the ticket' s list price significantly exceeds its face value, which is not displayed 

on the website. 

68. A consumer who clicked on a "Buy" button was directed to a checkout page, for 

example: 

- - - -~-=. ~- -.... ~- -~.._-.- -··~-- --:- :-..- - .. 

i Alban~BoxOflice.com - ;~~~;;;r: ·- __._.,..._ 
POWt ijl .f1 T •, f f t PFR0 '10ff l t f --

Buy With Coutidence 

Your event experience is 

guaranteed from start to finish. 

BuyJng •'Iiiii us means you will 

always· 

• Reeteve your tickets Jn time. 
• Receive real, valid bckets. 

Redeve the exact tid<ets you 
ordered or better ones 

• Receive a fuM re1\Jnd If the 
event Is canceOed \'lith out 
makeup. 

Nee<! help? Give Uo A CaJ 

1-888-546-8561 

Safe&Sewre 

All transactions are protected by 

256-M Secure SoCket l ayer 

encryption. Our system IS tested 

daily to assure the highest 

I secunty for our customers. 

I 
I m· m2m.llliiiil 

A return e-mail, whiCh states Ill at 

vour credn card has been 

charged for your order, serves as 

acceptance of your otrer to 

Tickets 

Eten~ 
Trffi'l: 
LOCation· 

THE AVETI BROTHERS 
I}~U• ;oopo. 

Pa';~ TI"•;:a•re~ ,._., ~ •• • US 

Seat~ Sec \on: ~ ALC Row: r " 
Price Per Ticket: '; •5: Gil 
rtckets Reqvcste<l : [23 

Please Note: 
-'l. 'Y' f';es :'le ,. t ~()t- u1 ~ 
: do.:s not ill".;;~,.~, • :-1;- • or ..... Cil ':" l..t .. s. 'a~ aN· 
'ofn:: 3111 ' "" 'e 1 .. ... .,. -:t: n .. ue 

Delivery Options 

De •v~r To: lr_-:S~e-:-le-=ct-;:C~o-un-:-try----3' 

TickPt': 
~. ,very: 

Tollll : 

Tit ket' c4n on•t b~ sh~p~<l t > the cc .ntn•s llst!'d ot tYe. 

I'Wtv.ry ~ thot•. l -- S~i"ct 0 ''-··. Ot ·'·"' •· :::J C ckfor helo 
P'-use selec• a o.::: .ry C on try and Delivery Met! oo t •r od J o. l 31 • r ,.,,,.~.1. 

r A1d $ ~.f , 1iifr~ "' ·" .'! 1J ff':l N• , 

Billing lnformatio~n~~::::!::::===============-'==-----­
Firs Namt: 

Last N4Joo. r-------
En,J~ Add e•~= 
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69. This checkout page, also titled "AlbanyBoxOffice.com," displays the tickets that 

the consumer is about to purchase, delivery options, and a box for credit card information. 

Above "delivery options," in very small type, is the same set of purported disclosures that appear 

on the right side ofRyadd's landing pages: 

Please Note: 
All prices are in US Dollars ($) 
Total does not include state or local, or other taxes if applicable 
We are a resale marketplace, not a box office or venue 

70. Like on the Ryadd websites, TicketNetwork controls the content of the "terms and 

policies" box. If a consumer scrolls down to the bottom of the checkout page, below the 

"Billing Information" fields, there is a section asking: "Have you read and do you agree to our 

terms and policies?" with radio buttons reading "Yes" and ''No." Below this question in the 

"terms and policies" box appears information about the consumer's purchase, for example: 

Pun:hase Noles 

A rerum a-malt, wtlic:h states that 
)'OUr credit card has been 

c:twged for your «der, serves as 

accepta.nce or your o1fer to 
purchase tickets. 

Allsalu aro final. 
There are no refunds, excnanges 
or cancttlaUons. tf the event is 

postponed, tict.els viii be 

honored for the rescheduled 

date. 

Billing Information 

Cr•da. r ., •· 

r '~'· •""': IMonlh :::J !Year :::J 
~~unry C 1 .... r--- Who!,, a Secyr:rv Coco? 

f .SCOI.. .tCo1·. · · + , 

P~ ,. J eo 1 -.JU • • • ' v terms ard PO!!aes" ("' r. ' 

~at alban)'tJoxomca.coin acts as an lntermeCSI.ii)- between buyers and ticktfiiilers (difine<l beiOw)-to-- . ) 
••cilltatetht purChase and sale of event Hckets. and as such is not d'Jedt)' InvolVed ., tne a<IUaJ tickatu!t ::I 

soe!lon t>etween the blf(e<s and TICKET SEUERS. AD sale$ are mal. A$li<l<els •old through SITE are onen 
talned through the secondary mal1cet and ptic:es are determined by the lndMa.Jat tideat seter. the prtc.es for 

dc:el$ may be abOYa or below face va..,a. The folo\•;ino owe tne rutes or "TERMs· tha1 oovem use Of the 
lbanyboxoft!ce.c:om Web Stte fSrrE") lr(you, tho uo;or olllle SITE ('USER"). By using« Yioiting the SITE. 
SER eXI>reSSiy agrees to be bound lr( these TERMS and to tolow tnase TERMS and a!l oppllcalllo laws and 

tgu!aUons oovemino the SITE. a:banyboxotfice.com reserves the right to chance these TERMS a1 any time. 
ftecllve immedialol)' upon posUng on the SITE. If USER violates ll>ese TERMS albanyboxofllce.c:om may __:.1 

f.i "" :"1 ,•~;' •.Jit I "": toC"' 
fQlli 

( ~ ~ kR!11:.ml.t - ~~., JIP • 

ScgucBo ?mce mm . r(' 1 "" 

~ ~ 1 t.'our 

Continue secure Checkout > 
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71. A consumer does not have to scroll down within the "terms and policies" box to 

complete the transaction; rather, the consumer simply could click "Yes" above it, and then click 

the "Continue" button at the bottom of the webpage to review the order, and ultimately complete 

his transaction. 

72. If the consumer scrolls within the "terms and policies" box, additional 

information such as the following appears: 

ove Face Value. Tickets sold through SITE are often obtained through secondary market TICKET SELLERS 
nd are being resold, in many cases, above the price or "face value·· listed on the ticket. All ticket prices include 
ddilional service charges and handling fees as defined on each order. SITE and its TICKET SELLERS are not 
irectly affiliated with any performer, sports team, or venue; and SITE does not act as a primary sale box office. 
nless otherv.rise stated. By agreeing to these TERMS, USER agrees that the purchase price for tickets on their 
rder does not reflect the original purchase price of the ticket and may be either higher or lower than the original 
urchase price. 

rders. Orders placed through SITE will be fulfi lled by one of our network of participating TICKET SELLERS. ... 

73. The disclaimers in SBO's webpages, by virtue of their placement, size, language, 

and other factors, are insufficient to dispel the net impression conveyed by the company's 

Google advertisements and webpages that this is the official website for Palace Theater Albany 

or is the official site for an entity authorized by the Palace Theater Albany to sell tickets at face 

value. 

74. The following is another example of a search engine advertisement that SBO 

placed during the relevant period. A consumer searching for an event at the Performing Arts 

Center (PAC) in Providence, Rhode Island, who typed the phrase "providence performing arts 

center" into a Google Search engine box, would see the following search results: 
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Sea ch 

Videos 

News 

Shopping 

Mort 

Show search toots 

providence performing arts center 

Providence PAC. - Providence Perfonning Arts Center 
W\WI ppaeri Of' 'homt 
ButYotJtr!Ckets Today! 

Contact Us~ Events Calender· Special Offers 

Providence PAC Tickets I pac.providenceboxoffice com 
pae providenceboxoffice eof"'f 
Buy Providence PAC Tlcbts. Oft'ldal Pro\'idenceBoxOffice Site. 

Providence Center Tickets -Just Buy Prov Perf Arts Center Tix 
w.m )ustbuytfckets c:om:''Rhodelsland 
Provklt nee Perfonnlng Artl Center 

Providence Perfonning Arts Center . Home 
' d ppaa' cny 
Venue for concens, ltavdngshowt end &teloul events Contai'ls seriu achecMes 
plus tidet and booking infonnation Downtown 
,. 11 ** 10 Googlt reviewt 

220 Weybosset St ff 2 Providence Rl 02906 
(401) 421-2997 

Events 
Tidcets are available for purdlau 
onGne. by phone at (401) 421 ·-

Marv Poppins 
MARY POPPINS Is bringing ks own 
tnnd of &oad\v1y ruglc -

Directions 
The theatre Is ccn\'•nl• nUy local•d 
wi1hin walking distinct of ... 

Full Schedule 
Click here f01 Ful Seh1dule 
lnleraciNe Seau,g Chart -

.. 
Providence Perfonning Arts Center(PPAC) - D<ocSons 

Details 

At • glenc:e: rode of eges • gezillion bubbte show ·In m!serablet • 
mov'- paltct ·concerts 

Train: Providence Amtrak 

More reviews 

insiderpages com (7) 
tripad\"i,oreom (_.) 

yahoo com (1) 

judysbook com (3) 

75. The second result is a paid Google advertisement for an SBO resale website. All 

three lines convey the impression that clicking on this advertisement will take shoppers to the 

website of the actual Providence Performing Arts Center where they can obtain tickets from the 

"box office" at face value: 

Providence PAC Tickets/ pac.providenceboxoffice.com 
pac.providenceboxoffice.com 
Buy Providence PAC Tickets. Official ProvidenceBoxOffice Site 

76. In this advertisement, SBO added the more venue-specific detail in the display 

URL, "pac.providenceboxoffice.corn/." The actual URL owned by SBO, to which consumers 

are directed, is "providenceboxoffice.com." 
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77. A consumer who clicked on the blue hyperlink in the ad was directed to an SBO 

website with the following landing page: 

- '"'-~~- --~-~~ 

About U~ I Contact Us I Srte Policies 

ProvidenceBoxOffice..mm "~ ( ~ 1 f 1 f o - GeoTrust· 
p c w [ R [ J B y s E c u R E 8 0 X 0 r • I c E sEc u R E a .sl encrypbo n 

HOME CONCERTS SPORTS THEATER II!I!IIZII!!IIl .. 

You Me Shopping 

Providence Peforming Arts Center Tickets ProVldence Perfonn1ng Arts 

Center 

EVENT OATE &TIME VENUE Pro•lidence, Rl 02903 

The Addams Family Thu Mar 22, 2012 Providence Performing Vle\v Ttekets • 
7:30PM Arts Center United Stales t1f Amelita 

Providence, Rl 

The Addams Family Fri Mar 23, 2012 Providence Performing View Totkels • Live Support ~ 
7·30PM Arts Center 

Providence Rl Speak with a real person 

The Addams Family Sat Mar 24, 2012 Providence Performing seven days a week. 

2:00PM Arts Center View Tockets • 

Providence, Rl 
(888} 545 • 8561 

The Addams FamilY Sat Mar 24, 2012 Providence Performing View Tockets • Our Guarantee 
8:00PM Arts Center 

Providence Rl 
..,. Authenltc Tickets. 

The Addams Family Sun Mar 25, 2012 Providence Performing View TICkels • v On-time Oelivel)'. 1:00PM Arts Center 
Providence. Rl 

., The enct tickets you 

The Addams Family Sun Mar 25, 2012 Providence Performing View Tockets • ordered or better ones. 
6:30PM Arts Center 

Providence. Rl '1/ Refund on event 

Chris Botti Sat Mar 31, 2012 Providence Performing View Ttekels • cancellation 
7:00PM Arts center 

Providence, Rl Or your money back. 

78. A consumer who clicked on the "View Tickets" button on the landing page was 

directed to a ticket listing page, for example: 

- . ~-.. -· -~- -· 
.IY!OL1 U:; f C_m!gl y, I ~.fpfr_P-ll 

ProvidencP.BOIOfficB.com OcdPr online or purchas~ by phon~ toll frot-P at (888) 546..8561 'J t , 1 ~ • t u - GeoTr ust· 
P•~ '! ~ A f"l A'l' '>r(t R f ~ l l t r r! SECURE D .,~• ·..,.,uvJll>o" 

The A ddams Family at Providence Performing A rts Center 7:30 PM on Mar 22 2012- Pr""de nce Rl 

How many t!~ets do r ou want" rldecld& ~-~heckout ..=] 
lh'hlllfS y our price range~ No mm:mum ~ - No l'l'laxtmum. ~ 

SE"CTIOf'll ROW "'AVAiLABLE PRICE ~CH) 

ORCH L C 0 S75 
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79. The checkout page to which consumers were directed if they clicked the "Buy" 

button looks almost identical to that in the previous example, as illustrated below: 

Buy With Confidence -

Your event experttnce Is 

guaranteed from start to finish 

Buying witll us means you 1'~11 

alWays: 

Recieve your tickets In lime, 

• ReceiVe real, valid Hekets, 

Red eve the exact bekets you 

ordered, or better ones. 

Receive a full refund If the 

event IS cancelled without 

makeup. 

N~d hep? Give Us A Cat 

1-888-546-8561 

Safe & Secure 

All transacHons are protected by 

256-M Secure socket Layer 

encryption. Our system Is tested 

daily to assure the highest 

security for our customers 

Purchase Notes 

A return &-mail whldl states that 

your credrt card has been 

charged for your order. serves as 

;ir.r.P.nt~nr.A nf vnur n1fAr to 

Tickets 

THE ADDAMS FAMILY 
T""MJ .c~ ~~ .. -:h ~2 ""h"i12 ~; "'0 pu 

Event: 
firM • 
LOUit•on: Pl IC!l""O Pe 'fcrrn \It!=-~ "" Pn. odP"::€ n•u~ 

Seats Se lion: ukCd uc Row: D 
Price Per T1ck• t: S75 Otl 
Tickets Requested: [23 

P. J~e Nolil: 
AU p. tce'5 Wt in US D~f'IIS, 
T.,t .. dot .sn.ot lcluct"!<tllte or v .J1 ..... r other l., ~-; · appo-t.able 
:e .., J rt:s .. l""arttot;. ..cr. ~,t b orr a ~ fl" ·e 

Delivery Options 

o.,.,~er To: 1- Select Country - 3 

Tlc~ets: 

Oe11very: 
Tow: 

l 1t.kets Uln only >e sh•,•pd I'> lhd r ou-tri• listel! at:~ve. 

Ol'!.very Method: 1- Sr-'~c~ l'eli'i!IY Or 'io~ ·• :::::J cw for help 

Please sth!Ct a Ot>Uvrry Coun•')" and !leh.,..ry ~ethod for 3dillt anal >nfonnation. 

r A~d p •-:. ' 1>' ,·ry ,,Ill! 'ions o "Y or Jer 

Billing lnformatio~".:_____::::::::!!:~~====----~=========== 
Fir•t """"'' 

La•t Naroo: 
EmafiAdC!re~~:i--------------

Confirm Emal!: 
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80. If a consumer scrolled down to the bottom third of the checkout page, the "terms 

and policies" box appeared below the "Billing Information" section, as follows: 

Purchase Notes----- --

A return e-mail. wnich states that 

your cre<frt card has been 

charged for your order. serves as 

acceptance of your offer to 

purchase tickets. 

All sales are final. 

There are no refunds, exchanges 

or cancellations. If the event Is 

postponed, tickets will be 

honored for the rescheduled 

date. 

B i lling lnformatio~n:..:_ ___ .=:==~============cc-· 
Forst Name: 
Last N1me: j---------

Emaol 1\d~ress: 

Confinn Email: 

Telllptoon": 
S!Jt'<'t:j-------------------

C.oty: 

Sl.l•c Province: ji-_--=-s""'et'""e-ct'"'s"'t-at'""e--------------i)-, 

Zip. Post I Code: 

17 Use rv 

Crvdot Carel#: 

Exp;ration : i-:1 M~on-:t:-h-i)_•, I Year iJ 
Security C ;rte: r-- What 1s a Secun!)' Code? 

~2· !J . h read ~ d , .. 'l ; c·1 ag' ':!! J c"'r Jerms an~J colides? r Y .: r. 

eneral. albanyboxof!ice.com acts as an ontermedoary between buyers and ticket sellers (defined below)~l 
acilrtate the purchase and sate of event tickets. and as such is not directly involved In the actual ticket sale 
ransaction between the buyers and TICKET SELLERS. All sales are final. As tickets sold through SITE are onen 
btainad through the secoMary market and prices are determined by the individual ticket seller. the pnces for 

lckets may be above or below face value. The following are the rules or 'TERMS"' that govern use of the "-
lbanyboxoffice.com Web Site ("SITE") by you. the user or the SITE ("USER"). By usl09 or v isiting the SITE, 1 1.-t 
SER expressly agrees to be bound by these TERMS and to follow these TERMS and all applicable laws and o 

egulalions governing the SITE. albenyboxomce.com reserves the right to change these TERMS at any time. I 
f!ective immediately upon posting on the SITE. If USER violates these TERMS albanyboxof!ice.com may 

81. If a consumer scrolled down again, within the "terms and policies" box, additional 

information appeared, for example: 

Have l!Ou read and do ;.a.J agree to o r terms and policies? r Ye-: r- ~-:o 

ove Fate Value. Titkets sold throuoh SITE are afien obtained throuoh sec;ondary market TICKET SELLERS 
IIU <Ill! U!!illy II:'SUIU, irtrtlillllf \:iiS!!S, CIUUV4o! 11141! prit:!! Ul "ri:n:!! Valu!!" lisl!!U Ull lll!! lil.:k.!!l. AJIIit:kl:'! prit:I:'S illdUUI:' 
dditional service charges and handling fees: as defined on each order_ SITE and its TICKET SELLERS are not 
irectJy affiliated witn any performer, sports team, or venue; and SITE does not act as a primary sale box office, 
nless otherwise stated. By agreeing to these TERMS, USER agrees that the purchase price for tickets on their 
rder does not reflect the original purchase price of the ticket and may be either higher or lower than the original 
urchase price. 
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82. The disclaimers in these webpages, by virtue of their placement, size, language, 

and other factors, are insufficient to dispel the net impression conveyed by SBO's Google 

advertisements and its webpages that this is the official website for the Providence Performing 

Art Center or is the official site for an entity authorized by the Providence Performing Arts 

Center to sell tickets at face value. 

83. Defendant SBO generated hundreds of similarly-designed, venue-specific SBO 

websites and hundreds of similarly-designed paid Google advertisements to promote such 

websites and to sell resale event tickets in TicketNetwork's inventory. 

84. Similar to its relationship with Ryadd, TicketNetwork, through its plug-in 

software, maintains and controls the ticket information, venue maps, and checkout pages 

displayed on all of the SBO websites. 

85. TicketNetwork has received numerous complaints from consumers, event 

promoters, venues themselves, and various consumer protection agencies (e.g. , the Better 

Business Bureau ("BBB") and state Attorney General offices) about the above-described 

marketing practices ofTicketNetwork's Partners. TicketNetwork's legal department and key 

managers were aware of many of these complaints. Complaints from venues that Ryadd and 

SBO were mimicking their sites and violating intellectual property laws were routinely handled 

by its legal department, and forwarded to Ryadd and SBO. TicketNetwork also received notice 

from ticket brokers that they often received complaints from consumers when their tickets were 

sold through Partners' venue-mimicking websites. 
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TicketNetwork's Participation in the 
Deceptive Conduct of Ryadd and SBO 

86. TicketNetwork contracts with its Partners to act on its behalf to market and sell 

tickets in TicketNetwork's inventory. TicketNetwork's purpose in hiring Ryadd and SBO has 

been to drive more ticket sales to the exchange and obtain more fees. TicketNetwork has offered 

financial incentives to Ryadd and SBO to sell aggressively. 

87. TicketNetwork also purports to control pertinent aspects of its Partners' selling 

techniques. Its Partner Guidelines, in force during the relevant period, have expressly prohibited 

Partners from engaging in intellectual property violations, including the making of false venue 

affiliation claims as alleged in this Complaint. In fact, when venues complained about Ryadd 

and SBO advertisements like those challenged herein, TicketNetwork often exercised this control 

to defuse the complaints and bad publicity. However, TicketNetwork did not require Ryadd or 

SBO to terminate the venue-mimicking tactics employed in the vast majority of their microsites. 

88. TicketNetwork knowingly has profited from the deceptive venue-mimicking 

tactics ofRyadd and SBO. TicketNetwork earned substantial fees on Ryadd's and SBO's 

increased sales. In fact, TicketNetwork knew or should have known that Ryadd and SBO were 

making the misrepresentations alleged in this Complaint. A number of the complaints that 

TicketNetwork received from venues, customers, BBBs, or government authorities attached 

examples of Ryadd or SBO search engine pages or webpages that facially mimicked actual 

venues. TicketNetwork executives on numerous occasions also worked closely with Ryadd or 

SBO principals to coordinate responses to these complaints. 

33 

Case 3:14-cv-01046   Document 1   Filed 07/24/14   Page 33 of 44



89. TicketNetwork, in addition to recruiting Ryadd and SBO to act on its behalf, 

directly participated in their deceptive acts through the following means, among others: 

(A) Bagley, while an employee at TicketNetwork, was a full participant in the 

creation of the deceptive content ofRyadd's advertising campaign. Among other 

things, Bagley hired the computer programmer who built the microsites; helped 

devise the venue photos, venue titles, and venue descriptions on Ryadd 

microsites; worked on minute details like fonts and choice of venue logos; and 

conferred with Lineberry and TicketNetwork on how to defuse complaints. These 

actions lasted from approximately September 201 0 through mid-January 2011, 

after which Bagley left TicketNetwork to join Ryadd full-time. His superiors at 

TicketNetwork knew he was working on Ryadd strategies during normal 

company hours, and viewed such assistance as part of his job. Bagley's efforts 

also served TicketNetwork's purpose of growing the TicketNetwork exchange. 

(B) On repeated occasions, TicketNetwork and Ryadd executives jointly decided to 

modify only the single Ryadd "microsite" targeted by a venue complaint, rather 

than abandon Ryadd's deceptive business model. TicketNetwork personnel did 

so, even though they knew or should have known that Ryadd thereby would 

continue to operate hundreds of microsites that mimicked other venues in the 

same fashion. 

(C) TicketNetwork personnel other than Bagley, on repeated occasions, also exercised 

joint decision-making authority with Ryadd or SBO executives regarding details 

of the deceptive content of advertisements. TicketNetwork executives at times 

urged only those website content changes that would not significantly decrease 

sales. The general goal was to maintain Ryadd's basic business model for as long 
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as possible while TicketNetwork executives helped to fend off government 

investigations and private complaints. 

(D) TicketNetwork personnel also gave critical technical assistance to help keep 

facially deceptive websites up and running, for example, by obtaining security 

certificates for websites related to Ryadd's "official-online-tickets.com" 

advertising campaign. Later, when Google suspended numerous Ryadd websites, 

TicketNetwork technical personnel made it a priority to quickly create checkout 

pages for replacement Ryadd websites. Numerous such websites facially 

mimicked actual venue sites (e.g., "foxcitiesperformingartscenter.org") or 

otherwise were designed to create the misimpression of being an actual venue site 

(e.g., the term "Verizon" was appended to the registered domain name 

"theatergrandprairie.com" so that the website would appear as 

"V erizon. theatergrandprairie.com). 

(E) TicketNetwork also provided spurious "legal cover" to Ryadd and SBO by 

mandating the use of facially inadequate disclosures, and using those disclosures 

as a pretext for refusing consumer refunds. One set of disclosures was in the 

forbidding "terms and policies" scroll-down portion of the checkout pages, see, 

e.g., Paragraphs 43 to 45. The size, language, font, and other aspects of the 

disclosure were controlled by TicketNetwork. 

DEFENDANTS' VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT 

90. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits "unfair or deceptive acts 

or practices in or affecting commerce." 

91. Misrepresentations or omissions of material fact constitute deceptive acts or 

practices prohibited by Section 5(a) of the FTC Act. 
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COUNT I 

Deceptive Representation That Resale Websites Were Official Websites for the 
Venue or Other Entity Authorized by the Venue to Sell Tickets 

(By Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission) 

92. In numerous instances, from at least September 2010 to the filing of this 

Complaint, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for sale, or sale of 

resale event tickets through websites owned and operated by Ryadd and SBO, Defendants have 

represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, through the means, including, but 

not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 16 through 89 above, that these websites are the 

official websites for the venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell tickets at face value. 

93. In truth and in fact, the Ryadd and SBO websites are not the official websites for 

the venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell tickets at face value. Ryadd and SBO 

are not affiliated with any venue, sports team, performer, or promoter, and they sell resale tickets 

in partnership with TicketNetwork, often at prices significantly higher than face value. 

94. Therefore, the representation set forth in Paragraph 92 is false and misleading and 

constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

45(a). 

COUNT II 

Deceptive Failure to Disclose Material Information Regarding Resale Websites 
(By Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission) 

95. In numerous instances, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, 

offering for sale, or sale of event tickets through the Ryadd and SBO websites, Defendants have 

represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, that consumers may purchase 

tickets for events at the prices listed on their websites . 
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96. In numerous instances in which Defendants have made the representation set forth 

in Paragraph 95 of this Complaint, Defendants have failed to adequately disclose to consumers 

that: (1) Ryadd 's and SBO's websites are offering resale tickets for sale; (2) the ticket prices 

often exceed the tickets' face value; and (3) the websites are not owned by the venue, sports 

team, performer, or promoter (as applicable) or authorized to sell tickets on their behalf. This 

information would be material to consumers in deciding whether to purchase tickets through 

these websites. The failure to adequately disclose this information resulted in consumers 

unknowingly paying substantially more than face value for event tickets. 

97. Defendants' failure to adequately disclose the material information described in 

Paragraph 96 above, in light of the representation described in Paragraph 95 above, constitutes a 

deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

VIOLATIONS OF CUTPA 

98. CUTPA at§ 42-110b(a) states the following: "[n]o person shall engage in unfair 

methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any trade or 

commerce." 

99. CUTPA states at§ 42-110a(4): "trade" and "commerce" shall mean the 

"advertising, the sale or rent or lease, the offering for sale or lease, or the distribution of any 

service or any property, tangible or intangible, real, personal or mixed, and any article, 

commodity, or thing of value in this state." 

100. CUTPA also states at § 42-11 Ob(b) that: "[i]t is the intent that in construing 

subsection (a) of this section, the commissioner and the courts of this state shall be guided by 

interpretations given by the Federal Trade Commission and the federal courts to Section 5(a)(l) 

of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U.S.C. § 45(a)(1)), as from time to time amended." 

1 01. Defendants all operated, or have operated, from Connecticut. 
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102. The acts and practices alleged in this Complaint all emanate from and are 

intimately associated with Connecticut, are directed at Connecticut consumers and affect ticket 

sales at Connecticut venues. Defendants are therefore engaged in trade or commerce in the State 

of Connecticut. 

COUNT III 

Deceptive Representation That Resale Websites Were Official Websites for the Venue or 
Other Entity Authorized by the Venue to Sell Tickets 

(By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

103. In numerous instances, from at least September 2010 to the filing of this 

Complaint, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for sale, or sale of 

resale event tickets through websites owned and operated by Ryadd and SBO, Defendants have 

represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, through the means, including, but 

not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 16 through 89 that these websites are the official 

websites for the venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell tickets at the original face 

value purchase price. 

1 04. In truth and in fact, the Ryadd and SBO websites are not the official websites for 

the venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell tickets at the original face value 

purchase price. Ryadd and SBO are not affiliated with any venue, sports team, performer, or 

promoter and sell resale tickets in partnership with TicketNetwork, often at prices significantly 

higher than face value. 

105. Defendants' acts and practices, as described herein, were likely to mislead 

consumers acting reasonably under the circumstances into believing that the Ryadd and SBO 

websites were the official websites for the venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell 

tickets at face value. 

38 

Case 3:14-cv-01046   Document 1   Filed 07/24/14   Page 38 of 44



106. Defendants' representations as set forth in paragraph 103 ofthis Count were 

material to consumers ' decisions about whether or not to purchase tickets from the Ryadd and 

SBO websites. 

107. Defendants have therefore engaged in unfair or deceptive acts and practices in 

violation of Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-110b(a). 

COUNT IV 

Civil Penalties - Deceptive Representations (By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

108. The allegations ofParagraphs 103 through 107 of Count III are incorporated by 

reference as Paragraph 1 08 of Count IV as if fully set forth herein. 

1 09. Defendants engaged in the acts and practices alleged herein when they knew or 

should have known that their conduct was unfair or deceptive, in violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 

42-llOb(a), and, therefore, are liable for civil penalties ofup to $5,000 per willful violation 

pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-110o(b). 

COUNTY 

Per Se Deceptive Representation of Affiliation (By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

110. The allegations of Paragraphs 103 through 107 of Count III are incorporated by 

reference as paragraph 110 of Count V as if fully set forth herein. 

111. Defendants' acts and practices violate § 42-11 Ob-18( d) of the Regulations of 

Connecticut State Agencies, and constitute per se violations of CUTP A because Defendants have 

misrepresented the Ryadd and SBO websites as being affiliated with official websites for the 

venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell tickets at the face value price. 

112. Defendants have therefore engaged in unfair or deceptive acts and practices in 

violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 42-11 Ob(a). 
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COUNT VI 

Civil Penalties -Per Se Deceptive Representations (By the State of Connecticut) 

113. The allegations of Paragraphs 110 through 112 of Count V are incorporated by 

reference as Paragraph 113 of Count VI as if fully set forth herein. 

114. Defendants engaged in the acts and practices alleged herein when they knew or 

should have known that their conduct was unfair or deceptive, in violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. 

§42-110b(a), and, therefore, are liable for civil penalties of up to $5,000 per willful violation 

pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-110o(b). 

COUNT VII 

Failure to Provide Full and Fair Disclosure (By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

115. In numerous instances, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, 

offering for sale, or sale of event tickets through the Ryadd and SBO websites, Defendants have 

represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, through the means, including, but 

not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 16 through 89 that the websites are the official 

websites for the venue or other entity authorized by the venue to sell tickets at face value. 

116. In numerous instances in which Defendants have made the representation set forth 

in Paragraphs 16-89 of this Complaint, Defendants failed to fully disclose to consumers that: (1) 

Ryadd's and SBO' s websites facilitate the resale of event tickets without authorization by any 

venue; (2) Ryadd and SBO have no affiliation with any venue, sports team, performer, or 

promoter; (3) tickets listed for sale on Ryadd 's and SBO's websites are resale event tickets; and 

(4) tickets listed for sale on Ryadd's and SBO' s websites are listed at prices that in many cases 

exceed their face value prices. The omission of this information would be material to consumers 

in deciding whether to purchase tickets through these websites. The failure to provide a full and 
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fair disclosure resulted in consumers unknowingly paying substantially more than face value for 

event tickets. 

117. Defendants' failure to provide a full and fair disclosure, described in Paragraph 

116 above, in light of the representations described in Paragraph 115 above, constitutes unfair or 

deceptive acts and practices in violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 42-11 Ob(a). 

COUNT VIII 

Civil Penalties- Failure to Disclose (By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

118. The allegations of Paragraphs 115 through 117 of Count VII are incorporated by 

reference as Paragraph 118 of Count VIII as if fully set forth herein. 

119. Defendants engaged in the acts and practices alleged herein when they knew or 

should have known that their conduct was unfair or deceptive, in violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 

42-11 Ob(a), and, therefore, are liable for civil penalties of up to $5,000 per willful violation 

pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-llOo(b). 

COUNT IX 

Per Se Failure to Disclose Material Contingency (By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

120. The allegations of Paragraphs 115 through 117 of Count VII are incorporated by 

reference as paragraph 120 of Count IX as if fully set forth herein. 

121. Defendants' failure to conspicuously disclose each material contingency, 

condition or limitation to the offer, in light ofthe representations described in Paragraph 115 

above, constitutes a per se unfair or deceptive act or practice pursuant to Regulations of 

Connecticut State Agencies § 42-11 Ob-22. 

122. Defendants have therefore engaged in unfair or deceptive acts and practices in 

violation of Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-110b(a). 
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COUNT X 

Civil Penalties -Per Se Failure to Disclose Material Contingency 
(By Plaintiff State of Connecticut) 

123. The allegations of Paragraphs 120 through 122 of Count IX are incorporated by 

reference as Paragraph 123 of Count X as if fully set forth herein. 

124. Defendants engaged in the acts and practices alleged herein when they knew or 

should have known that their conduct was unfair or deceptive, in violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 

42-11 Ob(a), and, therefore, are liable for civil penalties of up to $5,000 per willful violation 

pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-110o(b). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

125. Consumers have suffered substantial injury as a result of Defendants ' violations 

of the FTC Act and CUTP A. In addition, Defendants have been unjustly enriched as a result of 

their unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive relief by this Court, Defendants are likely to 

continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the public interest. 

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

126. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations 

of the FTC Act. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award ancillary 

relief, including rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, and 

the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, to prevent and remedy any violation of any provision of 

law enforced by the FTC. 

127. The counts based upon CUTPA may be enforced by this Court through its 

pendent or supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367, and this Court may award 

reliefunder CUTPA, Conn. Gen. Stat.§§ 42-110m(a) and 42-110o(b). 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, Plaintiffs, pursuant to Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), Conn. 

Gen. Stat. §§ 42-110a, et seq. and the Court's own equitable powers, requests that the Court: 

A. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act and 

CUTP A by Defendants; 

B. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers 

resulting from Defendants ' violations ofthe FTC Act and CUTPA, including, but not limited to, 

rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, civil penalties and 

the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies; 

C. A ward the State its attorneys fees; and 

D. Award Plaintiffs the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and 

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper. 

Dated: ____ ,,2014 
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JON NUECHTERLEIN 
General Counsel 
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